




  Town of Mashpee                                     Planning Board  
                      16 Great Neck Road North  
                      Mashpee, Massachusetts 02649 

1 
 

Mashpee Planning Board 

 Minutes of Meeting 

Wednesday, July 05, 2023 at 7:00PM 

Mashpee Town Hall - Waquoit Meeting Room 

16 Great Neck Road North 

Mashpee, Ma 02649 

 

Broadcast Live on Local Channel 18  

Call-in Conference Number: (508)-539-1400 x 8585 

Streamed Live on the Town of Mashpee website 

https://www.mashpeema.gov/channel -18 

 

Present: Chair Karen Faulkner, Mary Waygan, Dennis Balzarini, Dale Oakley, Robert (Rob) 

Hansen  

Also Present: Evan Lehrer – Town Planner 

Absent: Mike Richardson  

CALL TO ORDER 

Chairwoman Faulkner called the meeting of the Planning Board to order at 7:00P.M. The 

Pledge of Allegiance was recited.  

 

APPROVAL OF MEETING MINUTES – June 21, 2023   

No comments were made regarding the meeting minutes for June 21, 2023. 

 

MOTION:  

Mr. Balzarini made a motion to accept the meeting minutes from June 21, 2023. 

Seconded by Ms. Waygan. All in favor.  

 

APPROVAL NOT REQUIRED  

Applicant:  John and Carla Mullen, Trustees  

  Carla E Mullen 2012 Trust  

Location:   188 Pimlico Pond Road, Mashpee, MA 02649  

  Assessor’s Map 2 Parcels 191 and 192  

Request:   Purpose of the ANR is to Divide Lots 1 and 2 as shown on the plan 

creating new Lots A and B. The remaining area of Lot 1 after division will 

be combined with Lot B and the remaining area of Lot 2 after division will 

be combined with Lot A.  

 

Ms. Faulkner asked if the drawn up plan shows access from the street to these lots?  

https://www.mashpeema.gov/channel%20-18


  Town of Mashpee                                     Planning Board  
                      16 Great Neck Road North  
                      Mashpee, Massachusetts 02649 

2 
 

Mr. Lehrer stated frontage on Pimlico Pond is 130ft. and 150ft. They would like to rectify 

encroachment from Lot 2 onto Lot 1. They are proposing to create Lot A and B through an 

equal land swap. This plan would be entitled to endorsement.   

 

Ms. Waygan asked about Lot 1 and Lot 2 in existence now, and why did Lot 2 get created 

with only 130ft. of frontage?  

 

Mr. Lehrer stated it predated the subdivision he does not know but he will look into it.  

 

Ms. Waygan does not want to endorse until that is looked into. 

 

Mr. Lehrer answered that the plan is entitled to endorsement, the Board has 21 days to 

endorse which would allow for discussion at the next meeting. The existing condition of the 

current lot shows 130ft. of frontage.  

 

Ms. Waygan stated if that time frame is missed then it just goes through. Her question is how 

this lot got approved with 130ft. of frontage.  

 

Mr. Lehrer stated it will remain an agenda item for the July 19th meeting.  

  

PUBLIC HEARING  

 

7:10P.M. (Continued from 06/21/2023)  

Applicant:   Southworth Mashpee Properties LLC  

Location:   Willowbend Permit Area  

Request:  Applicant proposes to modify the Willowbend Special Permit by amending 

the condition limiting the number of bedrooms allowed in the project. 

Currently Willowbend is allowed 853 bedrooms. Willowbend proposes to 

remove this condition or increase the maximum allowance.  

 

Ms. Faulkner stated the proponent is not here. She asked Mr. Lehrer to explain the status. The 

Town Manager was going to figure out a program that would calculate the excess of 

bedrooms, and she would like to know what steps are being taken.   

 

Mr. Lehrer reopened the Public Hearing today to report back about the Town Manager’s 

necessary research for best available estimate relative to bedroom count in Willowbend. This 

is currently resting with the Building Department. Mr. Lehrer spoke with Mr. Collins regarding 

time frame. Internally, Town Hall transitioned to a new permitting software 6 years ago, the 

record keeping relative to building permits is quite clear and data is sound. Currently, they are 

going through every street utilizing the listing provided by Willowbend and the assessor’s data. 



  Town of Mashpee                                     Planning Board  
                      16 Great Neck Road North  
                      Mashpee, Massachusetts 02649 

3 
 

This is a municipal file that will archive back to 6 years with specific permits and specific 

bedroom counts. They will start with the permits going back 6 years, as that is the statute of 

limitations, where the Building Department could withdraw or take some action having issued 

the permit in error. Going past the statute will be more complicated and require a bit more 

work. The records pre software are a little more disorganized. The Building Department 

records are stored in such a way where every property has its own independent file, every 

subdivision is one file with hundreds of documents. We will have an understanding of the 

number of pages and documents that need to be evaluated. It averages about 10 properties a 

day, five days a week, 300 properties a month, the document compiling could be completed in 

6 weeks.  

 

Mr. Balzarini asked if the statute is removed due to violating the permit in the first place.   

 

Mr. Lehrer stated Counsel felt strongly the Board should establish a baseline. His figure is 995. 

There is 6 years in the statute to discover the problem and act.  

 

Ms. Waygan stated it causes a problem with building permits and the special permit going 

forward because it’s not in compliance. Should we authorize the hiring of a consultant so they 

can start working on this?  

 

Mr. Lehrer answered they can pose the question to Town Counsel on the hiring of outside 

consultants, his only reservation is he doesn’t have a solid grasp of the scope of review for 

how many documents. We need to get a reasonable estimate of the documents.  

 

Ms. Waygan stated the Board’s consulting engineer could do it with a company that assesses 

properties. Vision is a company that works with assessors, they research these documents 

and enter the bedroom count in the records.  

 

Mr. Lehrer stated the Board of Health lacks a solid bedroom count because the DEP is the 

approving authority for the wastewater treatment. Their records aren’t giving proper data.  

 

Ms. Waygan commented that this is a condo complex and asked if there were copies of the 

condominium master deed and trust. It sounded like he bought lots, he had to have been given 

a copy of something. Each lot is linked to a certain water flow capacity, there must be 

something in their condo documents that talk about flow or number of bedrooms. Two helpful 

documents would be the DEP data and condo trust information.  

 

Mr. Balzarini stated when they first had their permit it said 284 bedrooms.  

 



  Town of Mashpee                                     Planning Board  
                      16 Great Neck Road North  
                      Mashpee, Massachusetts 02649 

4 
 

Mr. Lehrer retorted that DEP intervenes for expansion when 80% capacity is reached. 

Assuming the DEP reports provided to us are complete, it will shed light on the issue.  

 

Mr. Oakley noted the basis of their argument was they are over the bedroom count and still 

aren’t at max capacity.  

 

Mr. Hansen stated even though actual flows are within their guidelines, maybe their formula 

was a bit aggressive. The DEP is a big organization, they don’t change their policies very well. 

They could be up against a brick wall and allow the bedrooms to increase.   

 

Mr. Lehrer reiterated going back 6 years is simple, the complete picture will take 6 weeks.  

 

Ms. Waygan referenced a letter from Willowbend dated March 24, 2023 signed by Troy Miller. 

Exhibit A is the entire list of properties. There is a report from the wastewater treatment facility. 

It also references the Willowbend community consisting of over 300 homes.  

 

Mr. Lehrer commented based on the streets given, every property is contained in the special 

permit area. There may be properties outside of the special permit area. There is also the club 

house and other facilities on site. There also may be a street that Willowbend acquired the 

development rights to.  

 

MOTION:  

Ms. Waygan made a motion to extend this Public Hearing on the 853 bedroom count to 

August 2, 2023 at 7:20P.M. Seconded by Mr. Balzarini. All in favor.  

 

NEW BUSINESS  

Vote to set a Public Hearing date for special permit application submitted by Cellco 

Partnership d/b/a Verizon Wireless for a proposed personal wireless service facility (cell 

tower) at 524 Great Neck Road North (Assessor’s Map 67 Parcel 4).  

 

MOTION:  

Ms. Waygan made a motion to set a Public Hearing date for the immediate referral of the 

cell tower to the Cape Cod Commission for August 2, at 7:05P.M. Seconded by Mr. 

Balzarini. All in favor.   

 

Review and possible vote to accept invoices submitted by Ed Pesce Engineering and 

process payment.  

Ockway Highlands- November 12, 2022-June 2023: $6,699.40  

 

 



  Town of Mashpee                                     Planning Board  
                      16 Great Neck Road North  
                      Mashpee, Massachusetts 02649 

5 
 

Teal Circle in Willowbend- Construction, inspection, and professional engineering services 

November 18, 2022 – June 2023: $461.66 

 

Country Club Estates- January 18, 2023 - June 23, 2023: $673.63  

 

17 Silver Leaf Lane- Construction and Inspection  

February 21, 2023 - May 17, 2023: $1,635.24 

 

New Seabury Cottages Phase 3- Elevation Survey 

December 21, 2022 - March 24, 2023: $3,364.21 

 

Ms. Waygan asked if Teal Circle was an open project. Mr. Lehrer stated there was a minor 

modification with an existing shared driveway that the Board approved. The shared driveway 

needed to be evaluated for fire.  

 

MOTION:  

Ms. Waygan made a motion to accept the invoices presented and processed for 

payment. Seconded by Mr. Balzarini. All in favor.  

 

OLD BUSINESS  

Declaration of Default – Ockway Highlands Tripartite Agreement dated March 20, 2019  

Mr. Lehrer stated Mr. Pesce wrote a letter with a report relative to the paving. It was completed 

on June 21st. There was a lot of rain recently and everything is functioning in accordance with 

design. The drop in basin near 83-86 Blue Castle is performing. The only complaint since the 

paving is from the gentleman with the driveway that was not draining, and he is having some 

pooling water at the end. A photograph was submitted to Mr. Pesce. Due to the grade of the lot 

and elevation it will be difficult. That will be a conversation with the property owner and the 

developer, but the developer has moved quite a bit.  

 

Ms. Waygan asked if that driveway was constructed by this developer.  

 

Mr. Lehrer stated all conservation has been addressed, equipment is gone, vegetative native 

trees were planted, but the dirt matter remains unresolved. Mr. Lehrer needs to follow up with 

the Building Commissioner. A few outstanding matters remain like procurement of traffic radar 

speed sign. The intentions of completing the tripartite agreement remain, new security, or new 

tripartite, relative to default. The main impotence for contemplating declaration were draining 

challenges.  

 

The Board agreed to keep this as an agenda until all items are completed.  

 



  Town of Mashpee                                     Planning Board  
                      16 Great Neck Road North  
                      Mashpee, Massachusetts 02649 

6 
 

Mr. Lehrer noted once every item is satisfied the subdivision is complete. We can keep it on 

the agenda and allow time to ask questions about the driveway and finalize and complete the 

entire scope.  

 

MOTION: 

Mr. Balzarini made a motion to maintain the declaration of default as an agenda item to 

see what Mr. Morin will do to remedy the outstanding items of the tripartite schedule. 

Seconded by Ms. Waygan. All in favor.  

 

Mr. Balzarini made a comment about Mr. Marsters property to try and push for a formal 

process. Mr. Lehrer stated he has the right to construct but has to come back for lot releases, 

but he is allowed to build infrastructure. There are 81 lots in there.  

 

Mr. Lehrer noted in 2001 the Planning Board affirmed that approval, the as built intersection. 

The former Planner and Engineer expressed dissatisfaction with the design, they wanted a 

redesign with traffic safety in mind. A plan was provided and approved in 2018. When Mr. 

Marsters came back for lot releases we could not compel him to change it. They met with DPW 

and Mr. Pesce, there are some shared obligations between the town and the developer like the 

clearance of vegetation within the town road layout. The DPW expressed willingness and they 

are awaiting a timeframe.  

 

Ms. Faulkner asked about the accident rate at that location.  

 

Mr. Lehrer noted there was a traffic study done of this area for 209 Old Barnstable Road. He 

will follow up with Ms. Laurent regarding vegetation encroachment. This will defer to another 

agenda.  

 

CHAIRMANS REPORT  

Water Quality Issues  

Ms. Faulkner announced that at the Select Board meeting a week ago there was unanimous 

approval for the town to submit the application for the state revolving fund loan. She was 

distressed to see Old Silver Beach in N. Falmouth closed on June 29th due to high bacterial 

count. This is an ocean beach!  They didn’t say what the bacteria was. She hopes the tree 

preservation bylaw passes and it will stop clear cutting of lots during building.  

 

Ms. Waygan stated the DEP put out their new regulations. There is a lot of pushback for 

changes to Title 5, impacting communities on Cape Cod that haven’t met their water quality 

goals for nitrogen in our estuaries. Our town has 2 years to submit for a 20 year water shed 

permit, otherwise we will be replacing with IA systems.  

 



  Town of Mashpee                                     Planning Board  
                      16 Great Neck Road North  
                      Mashpee, Massachusetts 02649 

7 
 

Mr. Balzarini commented the state could come in and say this town isn’t moving fast enough. 

In 5 years the DEP could change it.  

 

Mr. Oakley asked how we can stop these bacteria from getting into the ponds. One reason is 

bringing boats in the ponds. Some people bring their boat for that reason, to flush the engines. 

Mashpee Pond has already been closed twice. This is a new development for Mashpee 

Wakeby Pond.  

 

Mr. Lehrer restated that if someone goes to Poppy and then brings their boat to Mashpee 

Wakeby, it is enforced. How do you know where the person was before the boat was in the 

pond?   

 

Ms. Waygan assumes the bacteria at Old Silver was E.coli.  

 

TOWN PLANNER REPORT  

Hazard Mitigation Planning Committee Public Workshop #2 

The workshop will be held Thursday, July 27th at 6:30p.m. There will be a press release to 

notify stakeholders. Anyone who lives in low lying areas, they need more representation from 

people that live near flooding roads.  

 

Harbor Management Planning Committee New Seabury Workshop  

This workshop is scheduled for July 13th, it was in The Enterprise.   

 

Housing Production Plan Update  

The Affordable Housing Committee is underway with consultants auditing the 2015 general 

literature. There is a meeting on July 11th with the AHC and consultants to layout process and 

engagement. There will be more updates to come. He will need to coordinate with the Planning 

Board to establish a joint meeting with the Select Board to get this adopted for submission to 

the DHCD in September. He will look into the availability of the Select Board. A draft schedule 

is being presented Tuesday at the AHC meeting. The grant needs to be submitted by 

December. The purpose of meeting jointly will be to expedite. The Select and Planning Boards 

should have a completed draft with a month long comment period prior to that meeting. The 

draft will be available at the end of October.   

 

Ms. Waygan anticipates a lot of comments.  

 

BOARD MEMBER COMMITTEE REPORTS  

Cape Cod Commission-  Two day summit called One Cape: all about 

water, housing, and climate change.  

Community Preservation Committee-   Meeting 7/06/23  



  Town of Mashpee                                     Planning Board  
                      16 Great Neck Road North  
                      Mashpee, Massachusetts 02649 

8 
 

Design Review-      No Meeting  

Plan Review-      No Meeting  

Environmental Oversight Committee-  David Weeden is the Chair. He got appointed 

by the Select Board and he will convene the 

meetings. He received the minutes from this 

Board appointing Mr. Oakley.  

Historic District Commission-    No Meeting  

 

ADJOURNMENT  

MOTION: 

Mr. Balzarini made a motion to adjourn the meeting of the Planning Board at 8:07P.M. 

Seconded by Ms. Waygan. All in favor.  

 

 

 

Respectfully Submitted,  

 

 

 

 

Christine M. MacDonald  

Board Secretary  

 

 

 

 

LIST OF DOCUMENTS  

Additional documents may be available in the Planning Department.  

- May 2023 Discharge Monitoring Report for South Cape Village – N= 6.0 

- April 2023 Discharge Monitoring Report for South Cape Village – N= 6.0 

- Town of Falmouth Notices  

- Town of Sandwich Notices  

- Town of Barnstable Notices  



kleslie
Typewritten Text
APPROVAL NOT REQUIRED

kleslie
Typewritten Text

kleslie
Typewritten Text

kleslie
Typewritten Text

kleslie
Typewritten Text

kleslie
Typewritten Text





























kleslie
Typewritten Text
NEW BUSINESS

kleslie
Typewritten Text

kleslie
Typewritten Text

kleslie
Typewritten Text

kleslie
Typewritten Text

kleslie
Typewritten Text



Town of Mashpee Planning Board 
 16 Great Neck Road North 
 Mashpee, MA 02649 
 

 

 

Mashpee Planning Board 
Public Hearing Notice 

 
 

Pursuant to Massachusetts General Laws, Chapter 40A, Section 9 and the Mashpee Zoning 
Bylaw Sections 174-24(C) and 174-47, the Mashpee Planning Board will hold a public hearing 
on Wednesday, August 16, 2023 at 7:10 PM in the Waquoit Meeting Room, at the Mashpee 
Town Hall, at 16 Great Neck Road North, Mashpee, MA 02649 to consider an application made 
by Pleasantwood Homes, LLC for approval of a special permit for a cluster subdivision of 
property addressed as 20 Tudor Terrace (Assessor’s Map 29 Parcel 198). The Applicant 
proposes to divide the subject Parcel comprised of approximately 6.024 acres into three 
building lots for single family home construction while preserving 3.021 acres as protected 
open space.  The Plans and submitted Application can be viewed in the offices of the Town 
Clerk or the Town Planner.  
 
 
Submitted by 
Karen D. Faulkner, Chair 
 
Publication Dates 
 
Friday, July 28, 2023 
Friday, August 4, 2023 



Town of Mashpee Planning Board 
 16 Great Neck Road North 
 Mashpee, MA 02649 
 

 

Mashpee Planning Board 
Public Hearing Notice 

 
Pursuant to Massachusetts General Laws, Chapter 41 Section 81T and the Mashpee Rules and 
Regulations Governing the Subdivision of Land, the Mashpee Planning Board will hold a public 
hearing on Wednesday, August 16, 2023 at 7:15 p.m. in the Waquoit Meeting Room, at the 
Mashpee Town Hall, at 16 Great Neck Road North, Mashpee, MA 02649, to consider an 
application made by Pleasantwood Homes, LLC for approval of a Definitive Subdivision Plan of 
land that would create three new 40,000 sq. ft. building lots by dividing the 6.024 acre subject 
property addressed as 20 Tudor Terrace (Assessor’s Map 29 Parcel 198).  The remaining land 
area totaling approximately 3.021 acres is proposed for open space as required by Mashpee 
Zoning Bylaw.  The three lots proposed obtain frontage via an extension of the existing public 
way called Tudor Terrace.   
 
Plans may be reviewed in the offices of the Town Clerk or Town Planner at Mashpee Town Hall. 
 
Submitted by  
 
Karen D. Faulkner, Chair 
Mashpee Planning Board 
 
Publication dates:  
 
Friday, July 28, 2023 
Friday, August 4, 2023 

 



kleslie
Typewritten Text
NOTICES

kleslie
Typewritten Text

kleslie
Typewritten Text

kleslie
Typewritten Text






























	Agenda 2023.0719
	ANR Continuance 188 Pimlico RD
	ANR Continuance2 188 Pimlico RD
	Notices
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page



